
Overview and Scrutiny Board 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Board to be held as 
follows for the transaction of the business indicated.
Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Wednesday, 2 October 2019

TIME: 2.00 pm

VENUE: Committee Room 2, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

AGENDA

1  Please note 1.30pm Members only Briefing 

2  Apologies 

3  Declarations of interest 

4  Embankment 101 - capital costs and income generated. 

Ben Dolan – Strategic Director
Joanne Harman – Chief Finance Officer

(Pages 1 - 6)

5  Verbal update - development of the Fair Funding Review 

Joanne Hardman – Chief Finance Officer

6  Verbal update - 100% Business Rates 

Joanne Hardman – Chief Finance Officer

7  To approve the minutes of the meeting held on the 3 September 
2019. 

(Pages 7 - 18)

8  Work programme (Pages 19 - 22)

9  Any other business 

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3318
Karen Berry - Democratic Services Manager E-Mail: karen.berry@salford.gov.uk

Public Document Pack





1

Part 1 – Open to the Public ITEM NO.

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE AND THE CHIEF FINANCE 
OFFICER

TO OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD
ON 

2 OCTOBER 2019

TITLE: Embankment 101 – Capital costs and income generated

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

It is recommended that the Overview and Scrutiny Board notes the progress being 
made towards delivering the Council’s regeneration aims in inner city Salford through 
its investments commercial property.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

In support of the wider Salford Central and Greengate regeneration masterplans, the 
Council has invested in a number of grade A office schemes over the past 6 years.  
These interventions have had a significant positive impact in either initiating or 
maintaining the pace of development to grow the office market in the city.  The 
investments continue to grow the Salford business economy, create long term 
employment opportunities, shorter term construction related employment and provide 
an increase in business rates income.  As a result of completed lettings in the 
retained leased properties, the Council benefits from a positive cash flow return and 
for the owned property, a number of options exist to receive revenue income or 
generation of a capital receipt, all of which are available for investment in frontline 
services.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:  None

KEY DECISION: NO

DETAILS:

During 2013, the Council took the decision to take “wrapper leases” on two new build 
office properties, One New Bailey and 101 Embankment.  These leases had the 
effect of fully pre-letting the buildings ensuring that institutional funding was available 
for their construction.  In addition to the indirect income from business rates, the 
wrapper lease model creates a margin between the rent the Council pays for the 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



2

building and the rent it collects from occupational tenants.  This generates a surplus 
cashflow which can be used to fund the Council’s priorities.  One New Bailey is held 
on a 25 years lease from 2016 which cannot be assigned whereas the lease on 101 
Embankment allowed the Council to surrender its interest when occupational 
tenant(s) leased space in the building.  For One New Bailey, the Council also 
received an incentive payment in return for taking the lease to cover occupational 
tenant incentives and costs to undertake works to the property not able to be 
recovered through the building service charge.  The last Council interest in 101 
Embankment ended in 2016 whereas One New Bailey is now 97% occupied.

Following the success of these two interventions into the commercial office market, in 
2017 the Council took the decision to take a wrapper lease on 2 New Bailey Square 
and forward fund 100 Embankment.  The justification in support of these further 
investments was to continue the pace of regeneration of both Salford Central and 
Greengate, generate business rates income, the creation of both short and long term 
employment opportunities and deliver a direct financial return to the Council.

One New Bailey

One New Bailey is a 125,000sq ft grade A office building and was the first 
commercial property to be delivered as part of the Salford Central regeneration led 
by the Council’s long term development partner, English Cities Fund.  The Council 
holds a 25 years lease from Legal and General, the rent under which is reviewed 
annually in line with the retail prices index.  As of September 2019, the property is 
97.5% occupied which is ahead of any forecasts which were made in support of the 
original decision to invest.  When all the tenant rent free periods have expired in 
FY2020/21, the building will be making a net contribution of approximately 
£525,000pa to the Council’s general fund.  A tenancy schedule for the property is set 
out below:

Area Status
Ground floor right Let to Menagerie

Ground floor left Let to Foodwell

First floor Suite A Let to Allegis

First floor Suite B Let to WHIreland

First floor Suite C Let to Circle Group 

2nd floor Let to Dentsu Aegis Network

3rd floor Suite A Let to Freshfields

3rd floor Suite B Let to Shawbrook Bank

3rd floor Suite C 3,100sq ft Vacant

4th, 5th,6th and 7th floors Let to Freshfields

Page 2



3

101 Embankment

101 Embankment was the first of two office buildings comprising the Embankment 
development on the site of the former Exchange Station in Greengate.  The building 
comprises 165,000sq ft over 10 floors.  The Council took a wrapper lease of the 
entire property to enable funding for construction but with the ability to terminate its 
interest in each floor when an occupier tenant was identified.  Due to this 
arrangement, an incentive pot was not payable to the Council.  Subsequent 
marketing of the building generated a letting to Swinton Insurance of the full building.  
The Council’s exit strategy was successful in that it terminated its interest in the 
building at nil cost but having used its covenant to facilitate the development of the 
building.

2 New Bailey Square

2 New Bailey Square is a ten storey, 188,000sq ft grade A office building currently 
under construction with practical completion forecast for July 2020.  The Council has 
signed an Agreement for Lease to complete a non-assignable 25 years wrapper 
lease over the property with the landlord, Aviva.  To date, a pre-letting of 46,500sq ft 
covering two and a half floors to legal firm Eversheds Sutherland has been 
completed and a further letting of four floors is with solicitors to complete the legal 
documentation.  Marketing activity continues to let the remaining three and a half 
floors, but the property and more widely New Bailey, is becoming established as a 
legal and financial centre based on the profile of the tenants occupying to date.  
Business rates income from One New Bailey and Two New Bailey Square once 
completed is forecast to exceed £2.5m pa.

100 Embankment

100 Embankment is a nine storey 166,000sq ft grade A office building, phase 2 of the 
Embankment development.  Practical completion is forecast for May 2020.  The 
Council is forward funding the development in the sum of £72m.  This arrangement 
differs from the wrapper lease model in that the Council receives 100% of the rent 
from tenants which does not need to be offset against a head lease rent.  However, 
whereas the wrapper leases provide substantial incentive pots to the Council in 
return for taking the leases and to cover any void periods, the forward funding model 
means any costs of holding the properties and funding occupational tenant incentives 
are incurred directly by the Council.  These sums were factored into the financial 
modelling which took place in advance of the recommendation being made for the 
Council to invest in 2017 and form part of the overall £72m cost.

100 Embankment is targeting a slightly different profile of tenant from the New Bailey 
properties and as yet, a pre-let has not been secured.  The offer at Embankment also 
differs from New Bailey though which is marketed as an extension to Manchester’s 
Spinningfields, already an established legal and financial centre.  There are currently 
requirements circulating for over 800,000sq ft of space in the Manchester/Salford 
office market which need to be satisfied over the next c.1-3 years, this excludes large 
requirements which will inevitably emerge over the coming months.  More widely, the 
overall opinion of the Manchester office market is that demand continues to outstrip 

Page 3



4

supply and the Council’s retained letting agents are confident the property will let 
well.

Programme and Budget

2 New Bailey Square is currently forecasting practical completion in July 2020.  This 
is one month behind schedule and the delay is as a result of structural alterations 
required to accommodate a tenant fit out.  There are no budget implications as the 
Council is not funding construction.

100 Embankment is currently reporting as 8 weeks ahead of programme with 
practical completion forecast for 28th May 2020.  The scheme is funded by the 
Council with cashflow broadly on budget, taking into account the progress ahead of 
schedule, with £99k currently available as unallocated contingency.

Reporting and Management

Monthly marketing meetings take place with the developers of both properties, Muse 
and Ask for 2 New Bailey Square and 100 Embankment, respectively.  The meetings 
are chaired by the developers who have legal agreements with the Council to ensure 
proper marketing and exposure for the properties.  Also in attendance are the 
retained letting agents, marketing/public relations advisers and Urban Vision on 
behalf of the Council.  The meetings review ongoing marketing activity, identify 
potential occupiers and analyse requirements for space which are active in the 
market.  The format, content and attendees for the meetings is similar for both 
properties.

The financial performance of One New Bailey is currently reported to members 
annually at the Property and Regeneration briefing.  The reports to date have dealt 
with the progress of the lettings against forecast and an analysis of the assumptions 
which formed the basis of the justification for the Council to invest.  These updates 
have been in addition to the specific reports which seek approval to the terms of 
individual lettings.  It is the intention that similar reporting and analysis takes place for 
both 2 New Bailey Square and 100 Embankment when those properties are 
completed.

Funding Arrangements / Impact on Revenue Budget

As detailed above, the main driver for the council’s investment in these office 
developments was to ensure the delivery of the regeneration plans within the New 
Bailey and Greengate areas, but with the potential to deliver additional revenue 
income stream for the council for the delivery of services. 

To this end the investment in both the initial phase and subsequent approval for the 
investment in 2 New Bailey and 100 Embankment were taken on the basis that the 
business case demonstrated that there should be (based on prudent lettings 
assumptions) no call on the existing council revenue budget and that cost / lettings 
risks to the council would be managed across the 3 developments.

Page 4



5

The developments are therefore a mix of 25 year wrapper leases (New Bailey) and 
council capital funding (100 Embankment) provision for which is included in the 
capital programme. The revenue cost implications from lease charges and capital 
financing costs etc will be managed on a portfolio basis from a combination of initial 
incentive pot monies received / to be received from New Bailey and rental income 
received from tenants across all 3 developments, with surpluses held within the New 
Bailey reserve as a provision for initial tenant incentives and any future lettings / cost 
risks.  

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

Salford 2025 Regeneration
Creating Prosperity in Salford

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:

There are no equality impacts arising and directly as a consequence of this report

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  Chris Mee, Strategic Finance Manager

Contained within the body of the report

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:

There are no procurement implications relating to this report

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:
 
There are no HR implications relating to this report

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:

CONTACT OFFICER: Steven Keigher TEL NO: 779 6087

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: Ordsall

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



1

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD

4 September 2019.

PRESENT: Councillors D Jolley (in the chair), K Garrido, S Bellamy, L. Turner, 

                     J King, L Edwards, T Burch and A Brocklehurst  

                      Councillor Hinds – Lead Member for Finance & Support Services    

                      

OFFICERS:  Jim Taylor - Chief Executive
                     Jacquie Russell - Assistant Director
                     Joanne Hardman - Chief Finance officer
                     Tony Thompstone  - Strategic Finance Manager
                     Karen Berry - Service Manager

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Lewis, Morris and 
Sharpe

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

3.  1ST QUARTER BUDGET MONITORING REPORT.

Councillor Hinds, Lead Member for Finance and Support Services introduced this 
item.

This report sets out the current position of expenditure against the 2019/20
budget and provide an update on the approved savings programme as at the end of 
June 2019.

The current position by service group is detailed in table 1 of the report. 
As at the end of June, the projected position for the year end is an adverse variance 
of £6.393m.
The Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) is projected to have a negative in-year variation 
of £3.312m at the year end. A detailed report has been submitted for consideration 
by the Board, under item 6 on the agenda.

As reported in the 2018/19 outturn report, the opening balance on reserves as at the 
1 April 2019 is £13.2m.

The report details recent developments regarding the 2019/20 capital programme.
Appendix A provides a detailed scheme-by-scheme analysis of the programme   
including sources of funding and spend to the end of June.

Page 7

Agenda Item 7



2

The approved capital programme as set out in the 2019/20 Budget Report was 
£105.682m. Since the programme was approved in February, schemes have been 
re-profiled from 2018/19, and grant figures which may previously have been included 
as estimates are now known.
The revised programme of £151.387m is set out in table 4 of the report. The 
breakdown by service highlights the key changes since the Budget Report.

In response to questions posed in regard to the Integrated Fund; Joanne Hardman 
explained that in 2019/20 the Council and Salford CCG expanded its pooled budget 
arrangements through the creation of an integrated fund covering a range of 
Children’s, Adults and Primary Care services. 
Under the terms of the associated risk share agreement each partner would 
contribute to the cost of budget pressures in proportion to the contributions made to 
the pool for each service area. This means that rather than the budget pressures 
falling directly upon the council, the council will instead contribute its share of any 
budget pressures within Children’s and Adults services to the integrated fund.

The latest position reported to the Children’s Commissioning Committee the for the 
children’s element of the integrated fund and the Adult Commissioning Committee 
for the adults element are detailed in the report submitted.

There was an acknowledgment by members of the continued significant pressures 
from outside placements and that the pressure over time will reduce with the 
introduction of ‘No Wrong Door’.

RESOLVED, THAT the Overview and Scrutiny Board considered the current position 
regarding the 2019/20 revenue budget, savings and capital programme. 

An update to be submitted when detail has been issued regarding the £1.5b for new 
funding for social care.

4.  TREASURY MANAGEMENT OUTTURN REPORT

Councillor Hinds, Lead Member for Finance and Support Services introduced this 
item, and in doing so explained that the report provides details of treasury 
management activity in 2018/19

Tony Thompstone provided an overview of the following key highlights:

 The continuing policy of financing borrowing requirements by utilising a series
of short term loans from other local authorities in order to take advantage of 
historically low interest rates currently available and using PWLB loans to 
finance increases in the CFR;

 The investment rate of return has exceeded the benchmark target. Interest on 
investments was also higher than budgeted, although primarily because the 
level of investments was higher than forecast;

 All treasury management activity was within the performance boundaries set 
in the approved strategy for the year;

 The Council redeemed early a £50m inverse LOBO loan. After accounting forPage 8



3

the premium, a net annual saving of £0.4m will be made to the General Fund;

 The overall level of capital financing costs was contained within budget 
provision as a result of the borrowing strategy adopted.

RESOLVED: THAT THAT the Overview and Scrutiny Board considered outturn 
position and performance of Treasury Management

7.   DSG DEFICIT RECOVERY PLAN

Cathy Starbuck, Assistant Director (Children’s services) provided a detailed overview 
of the report submitted in response to queries raised by the Board at the meeting in 
July.

The report outlines the proposals included in the Salford’s DSG recovery plan. This 
plan was provisionally approved by the High Needs School forum sub group on 26th 
June 2019. The plan was submitted to the Department of Education (DfE) on 30 
June 2019.

High Needs allocation for Salford in 2018/19 is just over £31 million. Nationally there 
are growing concerns about the level of funding within the High Needs Block, with 
overspends being reported in most Councils.
There are growing indications that the Department for Education (DfE) are aware of 
the growing financial pressures in this area but currently there is no solution.

Cathy Starbuck explained the the high needs funding system supports provision for 
children and young people with special educational needs and disabilities (SEND) 
from their early years to age 25, enabling Salford LA and providers to meet their 
statutory duties under the Children and Families Act 2014. High needs funding is 
also used to support good quality Alternative Provision for pre-16 pupils who cannot 
receive education in schools.
Up to 2000 individuals in Salford are supported by high needs funding via Education
Health and Care Plans or exceptional situations = 3.4% of child population. A rise of
0.4% in 3 years. National average is 2.9%.

The report outlines the budget pressures which are significant. With the 
implementation of proposals these pressures will reduce over time. Work has been 
undertaken at a Greater Manchester level to compare levels of spend. This analysis 
has informed discussions with the High Needs sub group of Schools Forum has led 
to reviews to be undertaken of the various areas and has informed this deficit 
recovery plan.

In response to questions; Cathy Starbuck explained to the Board that councils are 
required to have a deficit recovery plan if 1% or more overspent, detailing how they 
will bring the deficit into balance in a three year time frame. The plan has been 
submitted to the Education and Skills Funding Agency, feedback is expected this 
month.

Members of the Board acknowledged the positive deficit recovery plan and the steps 
being taken to actively bring the budget back in line. 

Page 9



4

RESOLVED: THAT, the Overview and Scrutiny Board requested the submission of 
updates on a timely basis.

8.  GREATER MANCHESTER STRATEGY IMPLEMENTATION PLAN UPDATE      
 AND PERFORMANCE DASHBOARD

Jim Taylor, Chief Executive and Jacquie Russell, Assistant Director presented this 
report, which provides details of the most recent update of this implementation plan, 
along with an overview of Salford’s progress against the GMS priorities.

Jacquie Russell explained to members that the report includes the implementation 
plan update and performance dashboard as appendices. However, these reports are 
for information only, as Salford’s performance is only compared against other GM 
authorities and not our statistical neighbours – which often provide better 
comparisons.

Jacquie referred to the flowchart which illustrates GM reports and timescales, 
including the council’s internal reporting against the Great 8.

Members of the Overview and scrutiny Board considered each of the ten GM 
priorities as detailed in the report. 
It was agreed that individual scrutiny panels, if they wish could consider any of the 
following priorities relevant to their panel in greater detail:

GMS Priority 1 – Children starting school ready to learn: time lag on data 
acknowledged. 

GMS priority 2 – Young people equipped for life: Councillor Burch highlighted 
problem being they are encountering in Langworthy and asked for further detail of 
any city wide of partnership actions.

GMS priority 3 – Good jobs, with opportunities to progress and develop: 
reference was made to the recent report received by the Board in regard the success 
of the Apprenticeship Strategy and levy.

GMS priority 4 – A thriving and productive economy in all part of GM: 
acknowledgement by members that Salford is a strong performer in driving through 
investment and opportunities for growth.

Members raised concerns that home ownership figures are not improving, and in 
doing so referred to the number of homeless people in the city. Jim talked of the 
Housing Strategy and thrust on affordable housing. 

Councillor Bellamy requested clarification of the definition of affordable housing, as 
she felt there needs to be some clarity with housing providers.

GMS priority 5 – World-class connectivity that keeps GM moving: Members 
discussed the Clean Air Plan and the technical point about whether GM should be 
using the GMS target of roadside NO2 level of 30µg/m3 by 2020 or 40µg/m3 by 
2024.  Members requested detail to explain the technical differences.

Page 10



5

GMS priority 6 – Safe, decent and affordable housing: no queries.

GMS priority 7 – A green city region and a high quality culture and leisure offer 
for all: Councillor King asked further information on the hydro-electric scheme on the 
River Irwell also, queried why Community Renewables are only working with 5 
schools.

The Board requested more info on the increase in recycling rates, and specifically 
what impact if any we are seeing in areas with high concentrations of flats.

It was generally felt that the narrative in the report for this priority does not reflect the 
initiatives in Salford.

GMS priority 8 – Safer and stronger communities: acknowledgement by 
members of the partnership work taking place in Salford. However, concerns remain 
with regard to organised crime and the drain on resources. 

GMS priority 9 – Healthy lives, with quality care available for those that need it: 
Councillor Brocklehurst talked about the recent review of dental health and of the 
concerns arising from the review.

GMS priority 10 – An age-friendly Greater Manchester: no queries.

Members asked a number of follow up questions requesting additional information 
which are detailed as follows and include the response from officers:

1.  Cllr Burch raised concerns about anti-social behaviour in Langworthy, stating it is 
a growing problem linking it to NEETS. Trying to do something but not aware of 
city wide or other partner actions that they can link into.  

      
Jim Taylor suggested a discussion between relevant officers, Skills and Work Team, 
and Youth Service / Youth Offending, to ensure locally members understood existing 
programmes / offers.  

Response:
Officers to organise a meeting.

 

2.   Cllr Bellamy requested the definition of ‘affordable housing’.  

Response:

When referring to affordable housing we use the current definition of affordable 
housing found within the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF – February 
2019). This definition incorporates:

 social rented housing, 

Page 11



6

 housing let at affordable rents (80% of market rent but in Salford capped at 
Local Housing Allowance rates), 

 private affordable rent ( a new addition which applies to purpose built Private 
Rented accommodation where 20% of all units in these schemes need to be 
let at a minimum 20% off market rents)

 low-cost home ownership products – e.g. shared ownerships. 

 It is a pretty broad definition. In Salford terms, we are much keener on an approach 
that defines affordable housing more tightly, with a focus on social rented housing. 
But we cannot ignore the NPPF definition for planning purposes.

The affordable housing provided by Registered Providers in the City will meet one of 
these definitions. I am aware that some RPs have ventured into market housing – 
private rent, houses for outright sale – but these are separate ventures from their 
affordable housing offer. 

There is a wider debate around affordability and what is and isn’t affordable. Shelter 
at al consider that a figure of around 30% of household income spent on housing is 
considered to be affordable but that is not a definition we use when referring to 
affordable housing.

3.  There was discussion about the Clean Air Plan, and the technical point about 
whether GM should be using the GMS target of roadside NO2 level of 30µg/m3 by 
2020 or 40µg/m3 by 2024.  Members wanted to understand the technical 
differences. 

Response:

Comments submitted on the draft GM Strategy and asked that the target of 30 be 
removed as it was unachievable.  As detailed in the information below that target is 
not included but rather one that relates to a reduction in the number of times the 
hourly (200ug/m3)is exceeded in a 12 month period:

As can be seen from the table below there are 2 legal limits for Nitrogen Dioxide 
(NO2), one is an annual mean (40ug/m3) and the other is an hourly average 
(200ug/m3).

Page 12



7

At our 2 automatic monitoring sites the annual mean was 41ug/m3 at the M60 and 
25ug/m3 in Eccles for 2018 and there were no exceedances of the hourly average at 
either site.  However these are just two sites.

With regard to the Clean air Plan (CAP),  roadside exceedances above the 40ug/m3 
limit have been modelled for 2021 and without further interventions such as 
introducing a Clean Air Zone and other measures it is predicted that the legal limit 
will not be met across GM until 2027.  The Clean Air Plan Outline Business Case 
proposes to introduce a CAZ class C, from 2021 in which the most polluting vehicles 
(excluding private cars) will be charged a penalty to travel within, together with other 
supporting measure to help people upgrade their vehicles.  It is predicted that the 
CAP will bring about compliance in 2024.

Page 13



8

4. Confirmation requested of the published timeline for next phases of the GM 
Spatial Framework.

Response:

The latest published timeline is September/October for the next version. But there 
will be a report to September CA recommending setting out a new timeline, with the 
next version out next July. 

 5.  Cllr King asked for further information on the hydro-electric scheme on the River 
Irwell, interested in impact on the flood plain and how will be funded; also, queried 
why Community Renewables are only working with 5 schools – why not all of them?

Response:

The hydro electric scheme at Charlestown has p/p, and we are told is likely to be 
implemented next summer (they have to go through other processes, like satisfying 
OFGEN). The other potential site at Adelphi is more difficult because of river gauge 
issues with the EA. No impacts on the flood plain. 

Community Renewables are working with 7 schools. They will work with as many 
schools as they can – it’s about schools having the right roofs (both technically, and 
in terms of how this works financially now the Feed in tariff scheme is ended)

 6. The Board requested more info on the increase in recycling rates, and specifically 
what impact if any we are seeing in areas with high concentrations of flats.

Response:

Recycling rates after the fortnightly domestic waste collection service implemented in 
2013* & 3 weekly in 2016^, are as follows:-

2013/14*  39.8% 2016/17^  44.9%

2014/15*  41.2% 2017/18^  45.6%

2015/16*  42.2% 2018/19^  46.26%

The above recycling rates are for the full service including flats.

Participation rates within each Flatted Building

It is hard to accurately record the participation rates of flats as the waste and 
recycling facilities are communal. However it is estimated that these rates are as 
follows:-

2013/14  - 72% 2016/17  - 81% 

2014/15  - 75% 2017/18  - 83% 

2015/16  - 79% 2018/19  - 87% 

Page 14



9

The detail above have been achieved through partnership working with:-

Citywest (Forhousing) Pendleton Together GMCA (Ex GMWDA)

Salix Homes Private Housing 
companies(e.g. Irwell 
Valley, Contour Housing)

Initiatives 
There have been a number of initiatives that have enabled increased recycling every 
year; examples are as follows:-

 All flats within the city have been provided with recycling facilities in 2013 
unless there is a storage / space limitation

 Introduced recycling bins with apertures and padlocks to prevent mis-use to 
all flats with contamination issues

 In partnership with Greater Manchester Waste Disposal Authority (GMWDA) 
we delivered a campaign to re-introduce food waste to pre-selected private 
and social housing flats from October 2017 – March 2018.

 In 2018, revisited all flats to ensure they have the correct domestic bin 
capacity and appropriate recycling facilities 

 Introduced  new communal food waste bins  with narrow apertures to reduce 
food waste contamination 

 ‘What’s in the Box’ paper and card recycling campaign in partnership with 
Recycle for Greater Manchester reminded residents to keep contaminants out 
of paper & card recycling (Summer 2018).

 In addition to recycling information leaflets all new flats get reusable recycling 
blue and brown bags to transport their recycling to their communal bins 

 Put A1 size recycling signs, in bin stores where applicable, advising on what 
goes in each bin

 Ongoing monitoring and refresher leaflets get delivered to flats as appropriate
 Graphics on communal recycling bins reminding residents on what items go in 

which bin

Future opportunities and challenges:

2019/20 recycling target is 46.5%

 Improve quality of recyclates collected by reducing contamination 

 Work closely with new developments to provide adequate waste and recycling 

facilities at early stages of planning

 Growth in city

 Concentration of growth on specific days

 Large increase in flats which are a hard to reach group for recycling
Page 15



10

 Increase in recycling and awareness officers required to meet demand

 Increase food waste recycling within flats.
 
7. The Board requested more information on how 7 day GP access is working in 
different neighbourhoods across the city.  Specific mention to Ellenbrook, where 7 
day access is reportedly via a surgery in Leigh, which members argue is not 
accessible transport wise.

Response:

The CCG commissions Salford Primary Care Together (SPCT) to provide extended 
access to GP appointments across the city. This is currently commissioned on a pilot 
basis and is referred to as SWEAP which stands for Salford Wide Extended Access 
Pilot. The service began in April 2017 and the contract runs until 31st March 2020. 

We currently have an external academic organisation evaluating the service and this 
evaluation will help to inform the model we decide to commission in the future. The 
evaluation is due at the end of September.

All patients registered with a Salford GP can access SWEAP appointments at any of 
the hubs, to book they just need to contact their GP. SWEAP operates out of the 
following hubs:

 Swinton Gateway
 Eccles Gateway
 Newbury Place Health Centre
 Walkden Gateway
 Pendleton Gateway

The CCG has commissioned SPCT to provide extended access 6:30pm-8:00pm 
Mon-Friday and 9am-12:30pm on Saturdays and Sundays at each of the hubs. The 
appointments are provided by GPs, Nurses and Health Care Assistants. In some of 
the hubs the weekday sessions have been extended.

A condition of the new Primary Care Networks (PCN) Contract is that GP practices 
offer extended access in addition to the SWEAP offer and outside of core contracted 
hours (8:00am-6:30pm Mon-Fri). This can be offered on a PCN footprint or at an 
individual practice level. At the moment all Salford practices have chosen to deliver 
from their own premises.

Salford do not commission any services in Leigh but there is a Walk in Centre there 
(commissioned by Wrightington, Wigan and Leigh CCG) and the practice may be 
signposting patients to this service.

RESOLVED: THAT, Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Board considered the 
report submitted in detail and welcome responses to the additional information 
requested.

Page 16



11

It was agreed that officers would also submit the Corporate Performance Reports to 
future meetings.

9.   EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT - DRAFT SPOTLIGHT REVIEW REPORT

RESOLVED: THAT, the Overview and Scrutiny Board agreed the draft report as 
submitted. 
To be presented to the Lead Member for Workforce and Industrial Relations for 
discussion and response.

10. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD WORK PROGRAMME

The Board noted the work programme as presented.

RESOLVED: THAT, the Overview and Scrutiny Board work programme be noted 
and updated accordingly.

11.  MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING HELD ON 3 JULY 2019 
   
     RESOLVED: THAT, the minutes of the meeting held on 3 July 2019 be approved 
     as a correct record. 

12.   ANY OTHER BUSINESS
  
No items submitted.

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Overview and Scrutiny Board 

Work Programme and Recommendation Tracker as of 17 September 2019

Please note: There will be a Members only briefing at 1.30pm, with the main committee commencing at 2.00pm (unless 
otherwise stated)

SCHEDULE OF COMMITTEE DATES & AGENDA ITEMS

Date Topic Responsible officer (s)

2 October 2.00pm – Embankment 101.  
At the meeting in February the Board asked for a future report on this 
and similar projects in the  inner City area, in relation to the capital costs 
and income generated

Development of the Fair Funding Review and Government response to 
consultation. TBC

Update once ministers have made a final decision around the future of 
100% Business rates retention. Schedule Sept/Oct 2019. TBC

Ben Dolan, Joanne Hardman and 
Councillors Hinds & Antrobus.

Cllr Hinds and Joanne Hardman

6 November 
2019

2.00 - Urban Vision – overview of the business continuity contract, 
budget planning and workforce considerations

3.00:
1. Settlement update
2. Update on the progress of the budget proposals
3. Mid Year Treasury Management report

Ben Dolan, Joanne Hardman

Cllr Hinds and Joanne Hardman

4 December 
2019

2.00pm - Overview on the progress of the budget proposals for 2020/21

2.45pm - ICT Position Paper
              

Cllr Hinds and Joanne Hardman

Debbie Brown, Steven Fry and Cllr 
Hinds

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 8



2

             - Overview of ‘(My) Work’ Sam Betts, Kathy Kennedy, Frank 
O’Sullivan and Councillor Ferguson

ABEYANCE LIST

Integration with the CCG on Childrens, Adults and PH Cllr Merry and Jacquie Russell

Corporate Performance report Councillor Boshell and Jacquie Russell

Procurement Strategy – update report schedule for February 
2020.

Last report submitted June 2019.

Paul Nugent, Debbie Brown and Cllr Hinds

Digital You - digital inclusion project  (Schedule update between 
October’19  - April’ 20)

Update following the report submitted April 2019

Debbie Brown, Kathy Kennedy, Adam Micklethwaite, Director of 
Social Inclusion at Good Things Foundation and Cllr Hinds.

Apprenticeship Strategy – update following the report submitted 
July 2019.

Councillor Ferguson, Sam Betts and Frank O’Sullivan

Quarterly Performance report. Councillor Boshell and Jacquie Russell

Greater Manchester Strategy in regard to Salford – summary 
report & overview of progress in regard to Salford’s dashboard.

Update (last presented September 2019)

Jim Taylor and Jacquie Russell

P
age 20



3

SCHEDULE OF REGULAR MONITORING REPORTS

Treasury Management Report. Schedule February each year. Councillor Hinds and Joanne 
Hardman

Treasury Management Outturn Report – schedule September each year. Councillor Hinds and Joanne 
Hardman

Mid Year Treasury Management report – schedule November  each year Councillor Hinds and Joanne 
Hardman

Revenue Budget and Capital Programme. Schedule February each year. Councillor Hinds and Joanne 
Hardman

1st Quarter Budget Monitoring Report. Schedule September each year Councillor Hinds and Joanne 
Hardman

2nd Quarter Budget Monitoring Report. Schedule December each year. Councillor Hinds and Joanne 
Hardman

3rd Quarter Budget Monitoring Report – Schedule March each year. Councillor Hinds and Joanne 
Hardman

4th Quarter - Outturn Report. Schedule July 2019 each year. Cllr Hinds and Joanne Hardman

REVIEWS

ICT – scoping document to be completed following the 4 December O&S Board. Steven Fry

RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER

P
age 21



4

No recommendations presently outstanding

Portfolio of the Board: Membership – 11 Members:

1.Co-ordinating the work of the Scrutiny Panels 

2. Scrutinising corporate services 

3. conducting a programme of value for money scrutinies 

4. Considering reports from the Audit and Accounts Committee.

5. Scrutinising overall budget matters and all other financial 
matters, including the Treasury Management Strategy.

6. To receive reports from the Scrutiny Panels on a six monthly 
basis

7. To consider requests for scrutiny reviews under the Councillor 
Call for Action process (other than calls for action relating to 
Crime and Disorder matters where requests shall be referred 
directly to the Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel, 

David Jolley - Chair
Jim King – Vice Chair
Kate  Lewis
Adrian Brocklehurst
Margaret  Morris
Robert  Sharpe
Tanya Burch
Karen Garrido
Les Turner
Laura Edwards
Samantha Bellamy

P
age 22


	Agenda
	4 Embankment 101 - capital costs and income generated.
	7 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on the 3 September 2019.
	8 Work programme

